
December 12, 2017 · 

Mayor and Councilmembers 

City of Santa Cl~ra 
Warburton Ave 
Santa Clara, CA 95050 

Ms. Liz Brown, Director of HR 

Dear Mayor, Councilmembers, and Liz, 

RECElVED 

DEC' is· 20\7 
'I _'I 

MAYOR & COUNCIL OFFICES 
CITY OF SANT A CLA8A 

I emailed to you a letter attachment yesterday from Berliner Cohen1 a law firm, with an opinion on the 
question asked at the March 7, 2017 City council meeting regarding my retirement benefit. 

As you know, I retired from the city sf:)rvice on March 30, 2017 and then continued to serve as City 
Manager as an annuitant unt!I September 27, 2017. At the Council Meeting on March 7, 2017 (14 A 4), 
the City Council discussed and approved a supplemental retirement benefit for nie for the city to pay 
the difference .. b.etween my average annual ·salary ($296K) and the IRS/CalPERS cap {$265K), subject to 
getting a-legal op1nion that such .an agreement will not violate IRS code section, 401 (a) (17). 
. . 
As stated in the attached lett!'lr, Berlin.er Cohen has reached a conclusion that such an agreement will 
not violate any provisions of IRC 401 (a] (17). Therefore, I request that staff be asked to develop an 

. agreement between the city and myself to pay the difference in retirement benefit. The actual number 
can be calculated by finance/HR staff based on my exact average salary and number of years served. 
The term of the agreement can run parallel to the Cal PERS retirement term; i.e. as long as I, or my 
surviving spouse receive Cal PER~ retirement benefit. 

Thank you for the opportunity to allow me to serve the City of Santa Clara. 

Raj~e Batra 
City Manager (Retired) 

POST MEETING MATERIAL 
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Rajeev Batra 

Retirement Agreement Legal Opinion 
To Teresa O'Neill • Patty Mahan ••• •••• 
pkolstad@santaclaraca.gov • lgillmor@santaclaraca.gov • kwatanabe@santaclaraca.gov • 
Dominic Caserta • Debi Davis••••••• 
lizbrown@santaclaraca.gov 

Dear Mayor, Council Members and Liz, 

12/11/2017 6:50 PM 

This is Rajeev Batra. You may recall that l officially retired from City of Santa Clara after 
serving for approximately 15 years on March 30, 2017. Subsequently, I continued to work as 
City Manager as an annuitant till September 27, 2017 until a new City Manager was selected. 
Thank you for allowing me to seJVe. . · 

. Betor~ my r~tirement in March; the Qity Cqur,qiL discussed and approved two actions in 
Closed session and announced publicly in Open session on March 7, 2017: .(Moved by CM · 
Mahan,and approved unanimously under Item 14 A4). · 

The first one was to approve a 5% increase in salary to set the hourly rate as an annuitant. · 
This did not really affect rriy single highest year salary for CalPERS. 

The second action was to agree to pick up the difference in my retirement salarY and IRS 
salary cap of $265k for 2016 subject to a legal opinion that such agreement wlll not be in any 
conflict with IRS Code section 401 (a)(17) which capped right salary at $265k for CalPERS 
retirement. 

Previously in August 20171 submitted an opinion from a Professional CPA tax accountant 
confirming that such agreement could be entered into without conflicting with IRC 401 (a)(17). 

Subsequently I was advised by HR Director that the Council and the Acting Attorney wanted a 
legal opinion. Therefore, at my cost, I engaged the seJVices of Berliner Coher.\.El reputed law 'ft 
firm to research this matter and provide a l?gal .opinion. · · 1;.f;~:. · J 

Attached for your use is Berliner Cohen's legal opinion letter based on their resear6h, which 
concludes that the City can enter into a side agreement with me to pay me the difference ln 
retirement benefit between the IRS cap ($265k) and my single highest year salary 
(approximately $296k). 

Now that it has been clearly demonstrated that the City can enter into this agreement without 
violatin.g any provisions of the IRS code, this is to request to get such an agreement drafted. 
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The amount will be approximately $12,500 -$13,000 per year .. HR and Finance can calculate 
. the exact amount, which could b~ paid on a monthly basis or, for the ease pf .Finance staff, on 

an annual basis. The term of the agreement can run parallel to the CalPERS retirement term. 
In other words, it wHI run as long as I or the surviving spouse get the CalPERS retirement 
benefit. · 

Once again, thank you for allowing me to serve the City of Santa Clara. This is to urge all of 
you to enter into this agreement expeditiously effective March 31, 2017. 

Happy Holidays. 

·sincerely, 

. Rajeev Batr_a 

• Letter re IRC 401 (a)(17) for Rajeev Batra.pdf (706 KB) 
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Dear Mr. Batr~: 

lA\Vlset;Ce Ufl 
J91iN WHJ!_MAN "!P.. 
D,\\'10 ,;. OHlUl?.Q81 

)i;;~~;l!.t~fOHQollS 
!.11~!'Ai1 <;:. 1\R~W:ON 
JU51Ul D, t•f:Uoin 
M-HHONY DaJAGrn 
Elll:NM. M'ILdli' 

RICHARD E. HOlr.Y, Jll. 
LESlll:ltMIM >,1.cHUGH 
LAUF.APA]r,zzdto-

1 reviewe4 th,e ~o·oument~tio11 thqt you prqvided, and law related to.; yo.Ur truety ·-as kr 
1mndmum compynsati0,1 tu~der Intemal Revetrne Code ("IRC'').Section 401 (a)(17). 

Issue.P1:esented 

· The question ·.essei1Hally is- whether, du1fog your .i·etirenrcnt1 tlw City o-f s:anla Clam (the 
'
1Citv") can.pay y.oti the.-difference bet\v.een (1) the ·h\axin.1i:un aihount of compen.sution.ailowed fol' 
certain types of ten1'ei;1eJ1t phrns.mYde.r !RC S.etttop 40 i (nj( 17), And (Z) your sa[ai:y .as of the: tin1e·of 
yo qr retir~Jherg.. · 

Factual Bae.kground 

As I Ull~erstand H,. pursl;lanpp your emp\0ymem by the Cit)\ £1t1d preyi01.tsly b:y-tlle City ·of 
San Jose; y.ouJ.oinecl tlie Cal:ifoia1ia Publk Empl0yaes.' Retire.mei1t Systeni ec.a:JP.-ERS'') i'h·2002. 
theteby,. you ai'e stlo~·c.'fct to 't.lkc0i11pc,msatirm lin1its .. as s.et fotth ii1 !RC' Section 401:Ca:)(1.7). 

On IVl{;l.l'ch ?.; 2017, ~~})ile y9u w~rl:l Syt.v.fng as lnt~rhn .C:ity. '!Y!anager, th~ ·Citx C!)ltu.cil 
~pproved .two a~tkm.s ·£egarding yqu11 ct_m'l_pen?ation. F:fr.st,. tho· City CouneiJ 4pp1·t1vect a 5°/p s.a1c11•y 
increase for you, for purposes of'esfabllslifogjour,future houdy 1ime ns ·a .non°emplQyee c0Bsulta111 
\Vitlt tlfe Chy after y6Ui' tetirem.eilt th)li'l. tbe City. S.econd, the City agreed to ~n'ter- lnto. a s-ide· 
agre.emeqt wJth.·you in ol'der to pay you,.a1111ua.lly. ?Uriilg y:our t:e1ir~111ent, the :di.~erenc;e .p.etween 

4820.fl878·1656V4 
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Rajeev Batra 
December 8, 2017 

(1) the maximum amount allowed under IRC Section 401 (a)(l 7) and (2) the average of your salary 
9ver the 12-month period leading up· to your retirement. The City agreed to _enter into this side 
agreement with you pendihg confirmation that this arrangement would not violate the maximum 
compensation rule ofIRC Section 401 (a)(l 7). Your average annual salary over the 12-month period 
ending with yourretirement is approximately $296,000. This amount exceeds the maximum amount 
permitted to be paid to you during your retirement under a "qualified plan" of$265,000, as discussed 
below. The side agreement which the City Council approved for you is to cover the approximate 
$31,000 difference between the amount pennitted under y0ur CalPERS qualified plan and your 
average annual compensation as of the 12-month period leading up to your retirement. In 2017, you 
retired as the Interim City Manager of the City but have continued to perform work for the City in 
the capacity of a non-employee independent consultant. 

Now, you and the City are requesting an analysis regarding the impact that IRC Section 
401 (a)(l 7) may have on the City1s ability to pay you compensation in excess of the cap imposed 
under IRC Section 401 (a)(l 7) during your retirement, and you have requested that we provide some 
analysis of this issue. · · 

Analysis 

Generally, plans meeting certain requirements under IRC Section 401 ( a) are considered to be 
"qualified pians". A qualified plan must satisfy· specific requirements set forth in the IRC and 
regulations.with respect to eligibility to participate, vesting and benefit accrual, funding, distribution, 
and alienation of benefits. Specifically, with regard to the vesting artd accrual of benefits under a 
plan, IRC Section 401 (a)(l 7) specifies a maximum amount of compensation that may be taken into 
account. In particular, under IRC Section 401 (a)(l 7), a qualified plan may not take into account 
compensation in excess of $200,000 per year, indexed for inflation, or $265,000 for 2016, in 
· determining a participant's pension benefit. · · 

What the City has proposed and agreed to do is to enter into a side agreement with you to 
provide you with.compensation during retirement wbich is in excess of the IRC Section 401 (a)(l 7) 
limit. This is what is sometimes referred to as a "Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan" 
("SERP"). A SERP is, in essence, a fonn of11top-hat" plan that provides participants with retirement 
income in excess of what they can receive from their employers' qualified pension plan. SERPs are 
designed to provide benefits that could have been paid under a qualified.plan but for the limitations 
and restrictions imposed on qualified plans by various provisions of the IRC, such as the IRC 
Section 40l(a)(l 7) limitation. Resultantly, the existence of a side agreement which constitutes a 
SERP for you does not, in itself, violate the IRC Section 40l(a)(l 7) limitation ·or invalidate an 
otherwise ·qualified plan. 

Conclusion 

ln conclusion, based on our research, the City can, through a side agreement, pay you a 
retirement benefit in excess of the IRC Section 40 I ( a)( 17) limit. Specifically, the IRC Section 
401 (a)(l 7) limit for you, based on your re'tirement date, is $265,000. Your average compensation for 
the 12-month period e~ding with your retirement is $296,000. Thus, the City can pay you a 

4820-0678·1656v4 
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Rajeev BaJra 
December 8, 2'017 

rctir~n1ent benefit or,i .t)1e 'difference of appw:xim:atel,y $31, 000 by·a side-agi:eement v.rithout violating 
Il~C Section. 40 l.(~)(17). 

. Thfa. lefter 'is no~ intended to express any qpini.on on lbe si'de ~1gree111eni,. nor have we 
reviewe.d the side agreemeniltsell: The_oi1.ly op-ini@.'being exp.i;ess.€d. in thl.s le;ttei· hr with i'egi.u'd to 
me S.e.ctiqn 4.01(~)(1 ~). 

Shouid_you have·any furthC;Ji' questions, or w(}u!d l~i:; to.discuss fi.n:ther; please do not h~sitate 
to co11tact ine; 

TAS 

4820--081-lr··1S56v4 
DSELLUMOl'\ll25946Q01 

Very truly yours,. 

BERLINER COHEJ;l, LLP 

Th.ERA.. SHEWEY .... 
E,MniJ.: 
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